

~~For the reasons stated above, I recommend that the bill, S.2963, be amended as follows:-~~

Amend the bill by striking out sections 3, 5, 7-8, 12, 14, 17, 19-20, 24-29, 31-36, 40, 55-56, 60-62, 66, 71, 74-76, 81-82, 88-89, 93, and 121.

And amend the bill by striking out section 4 and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

SECTION 4. Chapter 6 of the General Laws, as appearing in the 2018 Official Edition, is hereby amended by striking out section 116 and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

Section 116. There shall be a municipal police training committee within the executive office of public safety. Members of said committee shall be as follows:— 5 chiefs of police to be appointed by the governor from nominations submitted by the Massachusetts Chiefs of Police Association Incorporated, 1 of whom shall be from the western Massachusetts region, 1 of whom shall be from the central Massachusetts region, 1 of whom shall be from the southeastern Massachusetts region, 1 of whom shall be from the northeastern Massachusetts region and 1 of whom shall be from the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority; 1 chief of police selected by the Massachusetts Chiefs of Police Association Incorporated; 1 police officer to be appointed by the governor from nominations submitted by the Massachusetts Police Association, Inc. executive board and the Massachusetts Police Training Officers Association, Inc. executive board; 2 sheriffs to be appointed by the governor; the chair of the Massachusetts Association of Minority Law Enforcement Officers, Inc.; the president of the Massachusetts Association of Women in Law Enforcement, Inc.; the commissioner of police of the city of Boston; the colonel of state police; the attorney general; and 1 person to be designated by the secretary of public safety and security; or their respective designees. All such appointments shall be for terms of 3 years with their successors appointed in a like manner.

The following persons, or their designees, shall be advisory, nonvoting members of the committee: the personnel administrator; the commissioner of correction; the commissioner of youth services; the commissioner of probation; the chairman of the parole board; the executive director of the committee on criminal justice; the chief justice of the trial court of the commonwealth; the chief justice of the district court department; the ~~commissioner~~ secretary of education; the chairman of the criminal law committee of the Massachusetts Bar Association; ~~or their respective designees~~; and the special agent in charge of the Boston office of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, if consent is given by the director of ~~said the~~ bureau, ~~or his designee~~. The governor shall appoint 6 additional advisory, nonvoting members of the committee, 1 of whom shall be an administrator of a city or town, 1 of whom shall be a clerk of the superior court, 1 of whom shall be a member of the committee for public counsel services, 1 of whom shall be a social worker, 1 of whom shall be a mental health clinician; and 1 of whom shall be a district attorney of a district, or their respective designees.

The committee shall elect a chair ~~person~~ annually and shall, as needed, provide nominations for the selection of an executive director to the secretary of public safety and security. The secretary shall select an executive director from the nominations submitted by the committee. The position

of executive director shall be classified in accordance with section 45 of chapter 30 and the salary shall be determined in accordance with section 46C of said chapter 30.

The committee shall set policies and standards for the training of the following, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, including the training mandated by this chapter, section 36C of chapter 40, sections 96B and 97B of chapter 41 and section 24M of chapter 90:

- (i) municipal police officers and candidates for such appointment;
- (ii) Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority transit police officers, and candidates for such appointment;
- (iii) police officers of the department of law enforcement within the executive office of environmental affairs, and candidates for such appointment;
- (iv) University of Massachusetts police officers, and candidates for such appointment;
- (v) Campus police officers attending committee-approved academies or training programs; and
- (vi) deputy sheriffs, appointed pursuant to section 3 of chapter 37, performing police duties and functions.

The committee shall set policies and standards for the screening of all applicants for admission to committee-certified academies. The committee shall set policies and standards for background investigations for all persons appointed to committee-certified academies and initial appointments of those persons, which investigations shall require at a minimum verification against the national decertification index or the database of decertified law enforcement officers maintained by the Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission established in section 2 of chapter 6E.

The committee and the division of police certification established in section 4 of chapter 6E shall jointly establish minimum certification standards for all officers, pursuant to section 4 of chapter 6E.

The committee, ~~in consultation with~~ and the Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission established in section 2 of chapter 6E, shall jointly promulgate rules and regulations for the use of force by law enforcement officers consistent with sections 14 and 15 of chapter 6E.

The committee shall maintain records of training for all officers for whom the committee sets policies and standards for training, issue confirmation of satisfactory completion of training, and provide for extensions or waivers of training requirements for good cause and maintain records of any such extension or waiver and the reason. The committee shall provide records of completion of training to the Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission established in section 2 of chapter 6E.

The committee shall coordinate with the center for responsive training in crisis intervention established pursuant to section 25 of chapter 19 on all behavioral health-related training.

The committee shall identify training requirements and develop guidance for meeting those requirements through trainings provided by the committee or other independent educational entities.

The committee shall review and recommend to the secretary of public safety and security an annual appropriation for the administration of the committee, as well as for the operations of a headquarters and regional training centers, and for the delivery of standardized training at the centers.

The committee may promulgate regulations pursuant to chapter 30A as necessary to implement sections 116 ~~through to~~ 118, inclusive.

And amend the bill in section 10, by striking out, in line 330, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And amend the bill in section 16, by striking out, in line 353, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And amend the bill in section 23, by striking out, in lines 395 and 396 and in lines 417 and 418, the words “committee on police training and certification, established in section 4 of chapter 6E,” and inserting in place thereof, in each instance, the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 23, by striking out, in line 425, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 23, by striking out, in lines 426 and 427, the words “and subject to the approval of the Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission,”.

And further amend section 23, by adding the following words:-

Section 116K. (a) The municipal police training committee shall develop and establish, within its recruit basic training curriculum and its in-service training curriculum available to in-service trainees, a course for police training schools, academies and programs for the training of law enforcement officers on mental wellness and suicide prevention. The course, which shall consist of 2 hours of total instruction annually, shall teach law enforcement officers how to: (i) utilize healthy coping skills to manage the stress and trauma of policing; (ii) recognize the symptoms of post-traumatic stress disorder within themselves and other officers; and (iii) recognize the signs of suicidal behavior within themselves and other officers.

(b) The course shall include information on the mental health resources available to help law enforcement officers and shall be designed to reduce and eliminate the stigma associated with law enforcement officers receiving mental health services.

(c) The course of instruction shall be developed by the municipal police training committee in consultation with appropriate groups and individuals having an interest and expertise in law enforcement mental health and suicide prevention.

(d) All law enforcement officers shall annually attend and complete a course on mental wellness and suicide prevention.

And amend the bill by striking out section 26, and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

SECTION 26. Said chapter 6 is hereby further amended by adding the following section:-

Section 220. (a) As used in this section, the following words shall, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, have the following meanings:

“Biometric surveillance system”, any computer software that performs facial recognition or other remote biometric recognition.

“Facial recognition”, an automated or semi-automated process that assists in identifying or verifying an individual or capturing information about an individual based on the physical characteristics of an individual’s face, head or body, that uses characteristics of an individual’s face, head or body to infer emotion, associations, activities or the location of an individual; provided, however, that “facial recognition” shall not include the use of search terms to sort images in a database.

“Facial recognition search”, a computer search using facial recognition to attempt to identify an unidentified person by comparing an image containing the face of the unidentified person to a set of images of identified persons; provided, however, that a set of images shall not include moving images or video data.

“Law enforcement agency”, as defined in section 1 of chapter 6E.

“Other remote biometric recognition”, an automated or semi-automated process that assists in identifying or verifying an individual or capturing information about an individual based on an individual’s gait, voice or other biometric characteristic or that uses such characteristics to infer emotion, associations, activities or the location of an individual; provided, however, that “other remote biometric recognition” shall not include the identification or verification of an individual using deoxyribonucleic acid, fingerprints, palm prints or other information derived from physical contact.

“Public agency”, any: (i) agency, executive office, department, board, commission, bureau, division or authority of the commonwealth; (ii) political subdivision thereof; or (iii) authority established by the general court to serve a public purpose.

“Public official”, any officer, employee, agent, contractor or subcontractor of any public agency.

(b) Any law enforcement agency performing or requesting a facial recognition search using facial recognition technology shall only do so through a written request submitted to the registrar of motor vehicles, the department of state police, or the Federal Bureau of Investigation. A law enforcement agency may perform such a facial recognition search for the following purposes: (i) to execute an order, issued by a court or justice authorized to issue warrants in criminal cases, based upon specific and articulable facts and reasonable inferences therefrom that provide reasonable grounds to believe that the information sought would be relevant and material to an ongoing criminal investigation or to mitigate a substantial risk of harm to any individual or group of people; or (ii) without an order to identify a deceased person or if the law enforcement agency reasonably believes that an emergency involving substantial risk of harm to any individual or group of people requires the performance of a facial recognition search without delay. Any emergency request shall be narrowly tailored to address the emergency and shall document the factual basis for believing that an emergency requires the performance of a facial recognition search without delay.

This subsection shall not apply to the department of state police when performing investigatory functions related to the issuance of identification documents by the registrar of motor vehicles.

(c) Law enforcement agencies shall document each facial recognition search performed and shall provide such documentation quarterly to the executive office of public safety and security. Such documentation shall include: (i) a copy of any written request made for a facial recognition search; (ii) the date and time of the request; (iii) the number of matches returned, if any; (iv) the database searched; (v) the name and position of the requesting individual and employing law enforcement agency; (vi) the reason for the request, including, but not limited to, any underlying suspected crime; (vii) the entity to which the request was submitted; and (viii) data detailing the individual characteristics included in the facial recognition request. Such documentation shall not be a public record, except for as provided for in (d).

(d) Annually, not later than September 1, the executive office of public safety and security shall publish on its website documentation received from law enforcement agencies under subsection (c) and the following data for the previous calendar year: (i) the total number of facial recognition search requests made by other law enforcement agencies to the department of state police, disaggregated by law enforcement agency; (ii) the total number of facial recognition searches performed by the department of state police, disaggregated by law enforcement agency on whose behalf the search was performed; (iii) the total number of facial recognition searches requested and performed by the state police; (iv) the total number of facial recognition search requests made by the department of state police to the Federal Bureau of Investigation, disaggregated by law enforcement agency on whose behalf the requests were made; and (v) the total number of facial recognition searches performed by the Federal Bureau of Investigation on behalf of Massachusetts law enforcement agencies, disaggregated by law enforcement agency on whose behalf the search was performed. For each category of data and each law enforcement agency, the published information shall specify the number of requests made or searches performed pursuant to a court order, and the number of emergency requests made or searches performed, and the reason for requested the search, including, but not limited to, any underlying suspected crime.

(e) Notwithstanding subsection (b), a law enforcement agency may: (i) acquire and possess personal electronic devices, such as a cell phone or tablet, that utilizes facial recognition technology for the sole purpose of user authentication; (ii) acquire, possess and use automated video or image redaction software; provided, that such software does not have the capability of performing facial recognition or other remote biometric recognition; and (iii) receive evidence related to the investigation of a crime derived from a biometric surveillance system; provided, that the use of a biometric surveillance system was not knowingly solicited by or obtained with the assistance of a public agency or any public official in violation of said subsection (b).

And amend the bill in section 30, by inserting after the words “professional level.”, in line 531, the following sentence:- This definition shall include policing decisions made by or conduct of law enforcement officers that: (1) are based on a law enforcement purpose or reason which is non-discriminatory, or which justifies different treatment; or (2) consider a person’s race, ethnicity, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, religion, mental or physical disability, immigration status or socioeconomic or professional level because such factors are an element of a crime.

And further amend section 30, by striking out, in lines 540 and 541, the definition of “Committee.”.

And further amend section 30 by striking out the sentence in lines 560 & 561, and inserting in place thereof the following sentence:-

“Division of certification”, the division of police certification established pursuant to section 4.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 564 through 568, the definition of “Imminent harm.”

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 583 and 584, the definition of “Necessary.”

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 600 through 605, the definitions of “Totality of the circumstances” and “Training director.”

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “the rank of sergeant”, in line 616, the following words:- who is a labor union representative appointed from a list of 3 nominations submitted by the Chair of the Massachusetts Law Enforcement Policy Group.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “(2) establish”, in line 710, the following words:- “, jointly with the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6,”.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “(6) establish”, in line 716, the following words:- “, in consultation with the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6,”.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 787, 788, and 789, the words “training and”.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 790 and 791, the words “including a basic recruit training curriculum and an in-service training curriculum for law enforcement officers”.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 791 through 793, the sentence “The head of the division shall be the training director, who shall be appointed by the committee on police training and certification.”, and inserting in place thereof the following sentence:- The head of the division shall be the certification director, who shall be appointed by the commission.

And further amend section 30 by striking out lines 794 through 829.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 830, the words “committee-certified”.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “police schools, programs or academies”, in lines 830 and 831, the following words:- approved by the municipal police training committee pursuant to section 118 of chapter 6, or the training programs prescribed by chapter 22C,.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 834 through 838, the sentence “The committee, subject to the approval of the commission, shall set policies and standards for the screening of all applicants for admission to committee-certified academies and shall set policies and standards for the screening for all applicants for certification and recertification as law enforcement officers, including, but not limited to, standards on background investigations for all applicants.”

And further amend section 30 by striking out lines 839 through 846.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 847 and 848, the words “The committee shall, subject to the approval of the commission,”, and inserting in place thereof the following words:- The division of police certification and the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6 shall jointly.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines 850 and 851, the words “designed by the committee and approved by the commission”, and inserting in place thereof the following words:- approved by the municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 857, the words “administered by the committee and”.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “oral interview”, in line 859, the following words:- administered by the commission.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 876, the word “committee”, and inserting in place thereof the following words:- division of police certification.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “of said trainings”, in line 882, the following words:- , as provided by the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6, and the department of state police.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 901, the word “committee”, and inserting in place thereof the following words:- division of police certification.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 905, the word “committee,”, and inserting in place thereof the following words:- division of police certification in consultation with the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6, and.

And further amend section 30 by striking out lines 914 through 948.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in two instances in line 1149, the word “committee”, and, in each instance, inserting in place thereof the following word:- commission.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the figure “(h)” in line 1152 the following words:- An appointing agency shall complete an internal affairs investigation into officer misconduct and issue a final disposition within one year of receiving a complaint or notice from the commission of the complaint being filed. The commission may, upon a showing of good cause, extend the time to complete the investigation.

And further amend section 30 by inserting after the words “shall suspend the hearing”, in line 1156, the following words:- . Any such suspension of the hearing shall not exceed 1 year from the officer’s notice to the commission; provided, however, that at any time during which the hearing is so suspended and upon a showing of good cause by the officer, the ~~c~~Commission shall further suspend the hearing for a period of not less than ~~six~~6 months and not more than the ~~c~~Commission determines is reasonable.

And further amend chapter 30 by striking, in lines 1189 and 1190, the words “~~by the committee on police training and certification~~” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- ~~jointly by the commission and the~~ municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 30 by striking out, in lines ~~1237~~ and 1238, the words “The committee on police training and certification shall promulgate rules and regulations, subject to the approval of the commission, for the administration and enforcement of” and inserting in place thereof the following word:- The ~~commission and the~~ municipal police training committee established pursuant to section 116 of chapter 6, ~~in consultation with the commission,~~ shall jointly promulgate rules and regulations for the use of force by law enforcement officers consistent with.



~~And further amend section 30 by striking out, in line 1238, the words “, subject to the approval of the commission,”.~~

And further amend section ~~30-54~~ by striking out, in line 1489, the word, “referred,” and inserting in place thereof the following word:- preferred.

And amend the bill in section 57 by striking out, in line 1558 and 1559, the words “Promotional examinations shall be open to a uniformed member who is a: (i) noncommissioned officer” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- Promotional examinations for: (i) the title of noncommissioned officer shall be open to a uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1562, the word “lieutenant” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- the title of lieutenant shall be open to a uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1565, the words “a captain” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- the title of captain shall be open to a uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1569, the words “noncommissioned officer” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1571, the words “such promotion” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- promotion to the title of noncommissioned officer.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1573, the word “lieutenant” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1575, the words “such promotion” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- promotion to the title of lieutenant.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1577, the word “captain” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- uniformed member.

And further amend section 57 by striking out, in line 1579, the words “such promotion” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- promotion to the title of captain.

And amend the bill in section 63 by striking out, in line 1619, the words “and training”.

And amend the bill in section 64 by striking out, in line 1624, the words “training and”.

And amend the bill in section 65 by striking out, in line 1632, the words “training and”.

And amend the bill in section 79 by striking out, in lines 1764 through 1766, the words “the training director of the committee on police training and certification established in section 4 of chapter 6E or a designee” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- the executive

director of the municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6 or a designee; the certification director of the division of police certification established in section 4 of chapter 6E or a designee.

And amend the bill in section 79 by striking out, in lines 179~~54~~ and 179~~65~~, the words “Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission established in section 2 of chapter 6E” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6.

And amend the bill in section 84 by striking out, in lines 1934 and 1935, the words “committee on police training and certification established in said chapter 6E” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee established in section 116 of chapter 6.

And amend the bill in section 94 by inserting after the word “home”, in line 2052, the following words:- “, unless there is a credible risk of imminent harm to the minor or adult over the age of 65 in the home.

And amend the bill in section 99 by striking out, in line 2110, the word “June” and inserting in place thereof the following word:- September.

And amend the bill in section 102 by inserting after the words “effective date of this section.”, in line 2143, the following words:- Notwithstanding section 4 of chapter 6E of the General Laws or the preceding sentence, a law enforcement officer, as defined in section 1 of said chapter 6E, who has completed an academy or training program certified by the municipal police training committee or the training programs prescribed by chapter 22C of the General Laws on or before December 1, 2021, and is appointed as a law enforcement officer as of December 1, 2021, shall be certified as of the effective date of this section.

And further amend section 102 by striking out, in line 2147, the words “Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 102 by striking out, in lines 2152, 2160, and 2162, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof in each instance the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And amend the bill in section 103 by striking out, in line 2191, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 104 by striking out, in line 2253, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill by striking out section 105, and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

SECTION 105. (a) Notwithstanding any special or general law to the contrary, there shall be a special legislative commission established pursuant to section 2A of chapter 4 of the General Laws to conduct a study on government use of facial recognition technology in the Commonwealth.

The commission shall consist of 22 members: 2 of whom shall be the chairs of the joint committee on the judiciary or their designees, who shall serve as co-chairs; 3 of whom shall be appointed by the president of the senate; 3 of whom shall be appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives; 1 of whom shall be the minority leader of the house of representatives or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the minority leader of the senate or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the chief justice of the supreme judicial court or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the attorney general or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the secretary of public safety and security or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the registrar of motor vehicles or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the executive director of the American Civil Liberties Union of Massachusetts, Inc. or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the chief counsel for the committee for public counsel services or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the president of the National Association for the Advancement of Colored People New England Area Conference or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the chief legal counsel for the Massachusetts Bar Association or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the colonel of the state police or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the president of the Massachusetts District Attorneys Association or a designee; 1 of whom shall be the president of the Massachusetts Chiefs of Police Association Incorporated or a designee; 1 of whom shall be an academic expert in: (i) data science, artificial intelligence, and machine learning; (ii) social implications of artificial intelligence and technology; or (iii) information policy, technology, and the law, to be appointed by the governor.

The commission shall evaluate government use of facial recognition technology in the commonwealth and make recommendations to the legislature regarding appropriate regulations, limits, standards, and safeguards. The commission shall:

(i) survey current government uses of facial recognition technology in the commonwealth;

(ii) consult with academic experts in the fields of machine learning, algorithmic bias, criminal law, and human rights; ;

(iii) examine research regarding the ability of facial recognition technology to accurately identify people of different races, genders, and ages;

(iv) examine and evaluate the facial recognition system operated by the registry of motor vehicles, make recommendations for regular independent bias testing, and propose standards to ensure accuracy and equity of the system based on age, race, gender and religion;

(v) examine access to the facial recognition system operated by the registry of motor vehicles and the management of information derived from it, including, but not limited to, data retention, data sharing, and audit trails;

(vi) evaluate current access by federal agencies to databases maintained by the commonwealth that catalogue images of faces; and examine which agencies have such access, and the authorization for, and terms of, such access;

(vii) evaluate a requirement for law enforcement agencies to obtain a probable cause warrant prior to performing facial recognition searches, including the merits of requiring enhanced standards to perform a search similar to those set forth in section 99 of chapter 272 of the General Laws;

(~~ix~~viii) examine whether, and under what circumstances, it is appropriate for law enforcement agencies to perform facial recognition searches without a warrant, and make recommendations for safeguards regarding due process, accountability, oversight, documentation and transparency for any such searches;

(~~ix~~) provide recommendations for any necessary due process protections for criminal defendants when facial recognition technology is used in a criminal investigation;

(~~ix~~) provide recommendations to ensure privacy for the public, including, but not limited to, the use of facial recognition to conduct surveillance of people in public spaces; and

(~~ix~~) provide recommendations for adequate training and oversight on the use of facial recognition technology.

For the purposes of this section, “facial recognition” shall mean an automated or semi-automated process that assists in identifying or verifying an individual or capturing information about an individual based on the physical characteristics of an individual’s face, head or body, that uses characteristics of an individual’s face, head or body to infer emotion, associations, activities or the location of an individual; provided, however, that “facial recognition” shall not include the use of search terms to sort images in a database.

(b) The executive office of public safety and security shall, at the request of the commission, provide to the commission timely access to all information to be published in the annual report pursuant to subsection (d) of section 220 of chapter 6 of the General Laws.

(c)The commission shall convene beginning not later than February 15, 2021 and shall submit its findings and recommendations, including any proposed legislation, relative to the use of facial recognition technology by filing the same with the clerks of the house of representatives and senate and the governor not later than December 31, 2021.

And amend the bill in section 105 by striking out, in line 2316 and 2317, the words “by the Massachusetts Department of Transportation” and inserting in place thereof the following words: in the Commonwealth.

And further amend section 105 by striking out, in line 2344, the words “and (viii)” and inserting in place thereof the following words: (viii) provide recommendations for the appropriate and acceptable use of facial recognition technology for beneficial purposes in law enforcement, the public sector, and other contexts; and (ix).

And amend the bill in section 107 by striking out, in line 2395, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 108 by striking out, in line 2477, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 111 by striking out, in line 2560, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 112 by striking out, in line 2588, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 115 by striking out, in lines 2619 and 2620, the words “committee on police training and certification, established in section 4 of chapter 6E of the General Laws,” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 115 by striking out, in lines 2624 and 2625, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And amend the bill in section 116 by striking out, in lines 2647 and 2648, the words “of the Boston branch”.

And amend the bill in section 118 by striking out, in line 2708, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- municipal police training committee.

And further amend section 118 by inserting after the words “assistance. The”, in line 2715, the following words:- municipal police training.

And amend the bill in section 119 by striking out, in line 2718, the words “committee on police training and certification” and inserting in place thereof the following words:- Massachusetts peace officer standards and training commission established in section 2 of chapter 6E.

And amend the bill by striking sections 122 and 123 and inserting in place thereof the following 3 sections:-

SECTION 122. Sections 1, 4, 6, 9, 18, 26, 30, 37 to -39, inclusive, 67 to -70, inclusive, 73, 80, 84 to -86, inclusive, and 102 shall take effect on July 1, 2021.

SECTION 123. Subsection (d) of section 15 of chapter 6E shall take effect on September 1, 2021.

SECTION 124. Subsection (a) of section 14 of chapter 6E shall take effect on December 1, 2021.